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AFFIDAVIT

1. I, Nicholas Amiano, being first duly sworn, hereby depose and state as follows:

INTRODUCTION AND AGENT BACKGROUND

2. I make this affidavit in support of a criminal complaint alleging STEPHEN
SPENCER PITTMAN (PITTMAN) violated Title 18, United States Code, Section 844(i), which
imposes criminal liability against whoever maliciously damages or destroys, or attempts to
damage or destroy, by means of fire or an explosive, any building, vehicle, or other real or
personal property used in interstate or foreign commerce or in any activity affecting interstate or
foreign commerce.

3. The Affiant is currently employed by the U.S. Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI)
Jackson Division, MS, as a Special Agent (SA). The Affiant has been employed by the FB] as a
Special Agent since October 2021. While employed with the FBI, I have investigated federal
criminal violations related to domestic and international terrorism. I have attended the FBI
Academy where I was trained on various types of investigative methods and procedures.

4. Based on my training and experience and the facts set forth in this affidavit, there
is probable cause to believe that PITTMAN violated Title 18, United States Code, Section
844(i). This Affidavit is intended to show only that there is sufficient probable cause for the
criminal complaint charging PITTMAN with the above violations and does not set forth all of
my knowledge about this matter. The information provided is based upon my personal
knowledge or that of other sworn law enforcement officers participating in this investigation.

SUMMARY OF PROBABLE CAUSE
5. There is probable cause to believe that PITTMAN damaged religious property by

using fire and other means on January 10, 2026, in the Southern District of Mississippi. On
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14.  During the evening of January 10, 2026, the FBI, Jackson Fire Department, and
Hinds County Sheriff’s Office interviewed PITTMAN. During the interview, PITTMAN
provided the following information: PITTMAN admitted to starting a fire inside the Beth Israel
Congregation/ISJL building which he referred to as the “synagogue of Satan.” PITTMAN said
on the way to the crime he stopped at Mac’s Gas to purchase the gas used for the fire, took his
license plate off at the gas station, broke a window out of the Beth Israel Congregation/ISJL
building with an axe, poured gas inside the building and used a torch lighter to start the fire.
PITTMAN believed he left the torch lighter at the Beth Israel Congregation/ISJL building and
that he caught himself on fire during the act. PITTMAN indicated his primary cell phone was
inside the Beth Israel Congregation/ISJL building.

15.  From the scene of the fire, the FBI was able to recover a burned cell phone
believed to be PITTMAN’s. The FBI also recovered a hand torch found at the scene by a
member of the congregation.

16.  The ISJL operates in interstate and foreign commerce as it provides services to
Jewish communities in Alabama, Arkansas, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi,
North Carolina, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Virginia. The ISJL provides
comprehensive religious school programs to 70 Jewish congregations and offers traveling
rabbinical services. Most of these school programs and rabbinical services are delivered in states
outside of the State of Mississippi. As a licensed 501(c) 3 nonprofit, the ISJL website offers a
“donate” option to allow for interstate donations to fund their nonprofit. The fire resulted in the

closure of the Beth Israel Congregation/ISJL building for an indefinite period of time.
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